
1

Archived Decisions for the Leader 2011

For further information please contact
County Hall

Llandrindod Wells
Powys

LD1 5LG

Stephen Boyd
steve.boyd@powys.gov.uk
01597 826374

ARCHIVED PORTFOLIO HOLDER DELEGATED DECISION

1. 2011-05-24 MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE BBNP 
AUTHORITY, AND FUNDING OF CENTRAL WALES IN 
COLLABORATION SOCIAL SERVICES FEASIBIITY STUDY AND 
POWYS CHANGE CARE PLAN AND WELL-BEING PROGRAMME 
SUPPORT 

(Pages 3 - 36)
2. 2011-06-02 WLGA WELSH LEADERSHIP ACADEMY 

(Pages 37 - 42)
3. 2011-11-17 21ST CENTURY SCHOOLS CAPITAL BID SUBMISSION 

(Pages 43 - 64)

Public Document Pack

mailto:steve.boyd@powys.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Decisions taken by the Executive Leader
 
Decisions Taken 24 May 2011  

Memorandum of Understanding with the Brecon Beacons National Park 
Authority

DECISION Reason for Decision
That the draft Memorandum of 
Understanding between the County 
Council and the Brecon Beacons 
National Park Authority be approved 
and adopted.

To enhance the operational 
relationship between the Brecon 
Beacons National Park Authority and 
the County Council.

Funding of Central Wales in Collaboration Social Services Feasibility 
study and Powys Change Plan-Care and Wellbeing Programme support

DECISION Reason for Decision
1. To approve 50% funding of the 

identified shortfall of between £44k 
and £54k in respect of feasibility 
study to enable the work to 
progress.

 
2. To approve 53K Programme 

Support funding for the PCP Care 
and Wellbeing change and 
improvement.

3. Note the proposed framework for 
the feasibility study as outlined in 
the appendix to the report. 

To ensure the progress of the Central 
Wales in Collaboration Social 
Services Feasibility study and to 
support the Powys Change Plan-Care 
and Wellbeing Programme.

 

 

Page 3

1



This page is intentionally left blank



  - 2011 
 

CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL. 
 

CABINET 
  
 

REPORT AUTHOR: Chief Executive  
  
SUBJECT: Memorandum of Understanding between Powys County 

Council and the Brecon Beacons National Park 
Authority    

  
 

REPORT FOR: 
 

Decision  

 
Summary:  
 
The Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Powys County Council 
and the Brecon Beacons National Park Authority has been in existence since 
April 2006.  The purpose of the MOU has been to seek to clarify the roles and 
responsibilities of the two organisations and seek to promote a productive 
relationship.  The Chief Executives and Chairmen of the organisations have 
discussed the current MOU and are now recommending minor amendments 
to enhance the relationship between Powys County Council and the Brecon 
Beacons National Park Authority. 
 
Introduction:  
 
The MOU has been in existence since April 2006.  The overriding aim of the 
MOU is to clarify the roles and responsibilities of the two organisations and 
also to promote joint working.  In practice, the existence of the MOU has 
tended to manifest itself in the bi-annual liaison meetings between the two 
organisations which are provided for by the document. 
 
In the light of experience since 2006 and the changing public service 
environment that is the advent of the Local Service Board and the Council’s 
move to neighbourhood management; it is considered that the current MOU 
needed to be reviewed.   
 
Proposal:  
 
The Chief Executive of Powys County Council and the Brecon Beacons 
National Park Authority and the Chairmen have discussed a number of inter-
organisational issues, including the MOU and working relationships.  The 
result of the discussions it was considered that the current MOU would benefit 
from a number of slight of amendments to make it more effective for the 
future in promoting more efficient and joined up service delivery between the 
two organisations.  The proposed amendments are:- 
 

Page 5



Liaison Meetings  -  The MOU provides for at least two liaison meetings 
during the year.  The aim of the liaison meetings has been and will continue 
to be to discuss strategic issues between the two organisations.  Experience 
has shown however, that on occasion, the meetings have tended to become 
too focused on specific operational issues.  Operational issues are extremely 
important but it is considered not appropriate for the strategic liaison 
meetings.  It proposed therefore, that when operational concerns arise, 
specific meetings should be convened to deal with this issue.   (Paragraph 3.4 
refers). 
 
Local Service Board  -  The Powys Local Service Board is now working 
towards a single delivery plan and has identified two strategic priorities: 
climate change and mental health and emotional well-being.  The liaison 
meetings in future will consider how the two organisations can support each 
other in achieving the strategic priorities of the Local Service Board.  
(Paragraph 5.4 and 5.5 refers). 
 
Neighbourhood Management  -  The Council’s Local Environment Initiative is 
seeking to develop neighbourhood management models to enhance service 
outcomes and also improve efficiency.  The National Park Authority are keen 
to be involved in such an initiative and they see it as a great opportunity to 
improve joint working but also to develop their neighbourhood clusters.  The 
National Park Authority is currently working with clusters of Community 
Councils and it is considered that engagement between the two organisations 
on this issue may in fact assist with dealing with a range of operational 
concerns which crop up from time to time.  (Paragraph 5.5 refers). 
 
Corporate Improvement Plan   
 
Collaboration with other organisations and climate change are priorities within 
the Improvement Plan.  The proposal is supportive of these priorities. 
 
Options Considered/Available  
 
Another potential option is to discontinue the liaison meetings and abandon 
the MOU.  Such an option would attract criticism and work against the 
Council’s state priorities. 
 
Preferred Choice and Reasons  
 
The preferred choice is to amend and restate the MOU.  It is hoped that such 
a course of action will improve understanding and working between the two 
organisations and thus lead to more effective and efficient service delivery. 
 
Sustainability and Environmental Issues/Equalities/ Crime and 
Disorder,/Welsh Language/Other Policies etc  
 
Enhanced collaboration between the two organisations will promote all of 
these areas. 

Page 6



Children and Young People's Impact Statement - Safe guarding and 
Wellbeing  
 
Not applicable. 
 
Local Member(s)  
 
Improving working with the Brecon Beacons National Park Authority will 
impact on the members who represent electoral divisions within the Park 
area.   
 
Other Front Line Services  
 
Not applicable. 
 
Local Service Board/Partnerships/Stakeholders etc  
 
The proposal is aimed at supporting the work of the Local Service Board  
 
Communications  
 
Greater collaboration between two organisations is a “good news” story but 
we need to be clear as to what we are trying to achieve. 
 
Members’ Interests  
 
The Monitoring Officer is not aware of any specific interests that may arise in 
relation to this report. If Members have an interest they should declare it at 
the start of the meeting and complete the relevant notification form.  
 
Recommendation: Reason for Recommendation: 
That the draft Memorandum of 
Understanding between the County 
Council and the Brecon Beacons 
National Park Authority be approved 
and adopted. 

To enhance the operational 
relationship between the Brecon 
Beacons National Park Authority and 
the County Council. 

 
Relevant Policy (ies):   
Within Policy: Y / N Within Budget: Y / N 
 
Relevant Local Member(s): Members with wards within the National Park 
 
Person(s) To Implement Decision:  
Date By When Decision To Be Implemented:  
 
Contact Officer Name: Tel: Fax: Email: 
    
 
Background Papers used to prepare Report: 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

                                                                                            
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

Brecon Beacons National Park Authority  
and  

Powys County Council 
 

 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 This Memorandum is made between the Brecon Beacons National 

Park Authority and Powys County Council.  It is not intended to 
constitute a legally binding document or to create any rights or 
obligations that are legally enforceable.  It is intended to be a broad 
guidance document, binding in honour only and not an exhaustive text 
of all those issues that might arise between the two parties. 

 
1.2 The purpose of the Memorandum is to define the role and 

responsibilities of the authorities in relation to the policy context and 
operational remit of the organisations.  The Memorandum also seeks to 
identify common objectives and establish the key operational principles 
that will establish and maintain a sound foundation for joint, 
collaborative working between the authorities for the future. 

 
 
2. Background 
 
2.1 A working relationship already exists between the County Council and 

the National Park Authority that provides an existing framework within 
which to view and develop an agreement.  The Memorandum will serve 
as a broad bilateral guidance document that sets out common 
provisions for future working relations. 

 
2.2 The Welsh Assembly Government has issued guidance on Section 

62(2) of the Environment Act 1995 to help explain the practical 
implications of the legal duty on relevant authorities to “….have regard 
to the purposes of…” National Parks.  This emphasises the strong 
need for partnership working, including the use of Memorandums of 
Understanding to jointly set out areas of mutual interest.  A key 
consideration of this Memorandum of Understanding is the 
acknowledgement of both parties that they will seek to promote the 
environmental, social and economic wellbeing of the National Park 
area within Powys. 

 
2.3 The Memorandum therefore recognises a number of key areas that 

affect joint working, and where responsibility has been delegated, but it 

Page 9



 2 

is not the intention of this document to interfere with or dilute any of 
those processes. 

 
 
 
3. Powys CC/BBNPA 
 
3.1 The cross-operational provision of services currently exists in a 

significant way between the authorities.  For example, through PCC, a 
pensions service, and a car leasing scheme have operated for many 
years.  However, the majority of services are inter-relational and cross-
boundary, partly because the County Council carries the statutory duty 
to deliver such services for its unitary authority area, partly because the 
National Park Authority carries the statutory duty to deliver such 
services for its area, and partly because of the delegation agreement in 
place where certain responsibilities are transferred to the NPA. 

 
3.2 The working arrangements outlined in this Memorandum will extend to 

the elected, and nominated, Members and officers of the authorities.  
Routine communication between the parties will normally be conducted 
at officer level. 

 
3.3 When necessary, and no less than twice during the year, a 

Member/Officer Liaison Meeting will be held between the two 
authorities in order to ensure that the protocols established by this 
Memorandum are maintained to the satisfaction of the authorities, and 
to discuss matters of mutual concern and interest. 

 
3.5 To aid the resolution of operational issues which may arise, regular 

informal meetings will take place between the Brecon Beacons 
National Park Authority Members and those Powys County Council 
Members who represent electoral divisions within the Park area. 

 
3.6 The aim of the liaison meetings is to examine the protocols in a 

strategic manner and when matters of specific operational interest 
require more detailed consideration, a separate meeting of relevant 
Members and Officers will be convened to discuss the specific details, 
reporting back to the Liaison Group as appropriate.  

 
3.7 Additional protocols of a strategic nature can and will be drafted as and 

when required for the approval of the authorities. 
 
4. Appointments to the Liaison Meeting 
 
4.1 The authorities will nominate Members and Officers to the Meeting as 

follows: 
 
4.2 Powys County Council 
 

Page 10



 3 

The Leader of the Council and the Cabinet Member with responsibility 
for matters relating to Regeneration & Development;  
6 x Brecknockshire Members with wards wholly or partly in the Brecon 

 Beacons National Park Area; 
Appropriate Senior Officers. 

 
4.3 Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
 

Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the NPA and Chairs of both the 
Planning, Access & Rights of Way Committee and Audit and Scrutiny 
Committees 
Appropriate Senior Officers. 

 
 
5. General Liaison and Sharing of Information 
 
5.1 The Brecon Beacons National Park Authority and Powys County 

Council agree that good working relationships between them are vital 
to the strength and quality of the diverse services provided and to the 
effectiveness of government investment in the area.  They are 
therefore committed to working together through the agreed processes 
laid out in this Memorandum.  The authorities can benefit from: 

 
• A good understanding of and respect for  each other’s role and 

responsibilities; 
• Close familiarity with each other’s work, experience and expertise; 
• Knowledge of each other’s initiatives and proposals; 
• Engagement in each other’s forward planning process; 
• A joint approach to projects and programmes where appropriate. 

 
5.2 They will normally share all information that they consider may be of 

interest and value to the other.  Whilst excluding matters of exclusive 
concern to each authority, such information may include: 

 
• Policy and strategy papers and reports; 
• Procedural and operational details that fall within the remit of each 

authority; 
• Forward-looking plans and reports (that have been before the 

respective authorities); 
• Proposals for consultation with the public within their areas; 
• Research papers; 
• Data collection and sharing; 
• Press releases; 
• Publications 

 
that may be provided in electronic or printed formats. 

 
 

Page 11



 4 

5.3 The authorities will establish systems and procedures to facilitate close 
liaison and the sharing of information.  This will include the opportunity 
to contribute to and participate in corporate policy development work 
particularly with the potential for achieving a common dimension in the 
areas of:  the Welsh language; Sustainability Frameworks; Equality 
Standards; Race Equality Schemes; and Access to Services. Appendix 
1 illustrates the range of matters in which both authorities are active in 
delivering effective services. 

  
5.4 As members of the Powys LSB, both organisations will play an active 

role in the delivery of the strategic priorities of the LSB and report to the 
Liaison Group on matters of interest relating to: 

 
• Climate change 
• Mental health and emotional wellbeing 

 
5.5 The Liaison group will identify ways of contributing to and receive 
information on progress on the delivery of the Powys Single Delivery Plan, 
including working with Community clusters in  the development of the 
“Neighbourhood Management” approach on a pilot basis, for example in 
Brecon. 
 
6. Monitoring and Evaluation 
 
6.1 This Memorandum of Understanding is intended as a tool to build on 

improving the good working relations between the County Council and 
the National Park Authority, and to improve the areas of service that 
are of mutual interest. 

 
6.2 The Liaison Meeting will regularly review the principles set out in this 

agreement.  The Meeting will also have a wider role in considering 
bilateral relations in general, for example, in the provision of services 
that could be monitored more effectively by one authority or the other. 

 
6.3 The agreement to work together in accordance with this Memorandum 

will contribute to the strengthening of relations and understanding of 
each authority’s statutory obligations, and the need to maintain ongoing 
support in areas of mutual interest and purpose that are integral to the 
delivery of effective services. 

 
6.4 The WAG guidance on the duties arising under Section 62(2) of the 

Environment Act 1995 also highlights the opportunities for 
organisations to use the Audit and Inspection regimes associated with 
the Wales Programme for Improvement, through the facilities of the 
Wales Audit Office, to help maintain compliance with the duty.  This will 
enhance the core relationship protocols between the authorities. 

 
 
 
 

Page 12



 5 

 
On behalf of the Brecon Beacons National Park Authority 
 
Chairman:           ………………………………………………………………… 
                                                 Councillor Eric Saxon 
 
 
 
 
On behalf of Powys County Council 
 
Leader of the Council :   ………….…………………………………………. 
      Councillor E. Michael Jones 
 
 
Cabinet Member :   …………………………………………………….. 
      Councillor Wynne Jones 
 
Chairman of Brecknockshire  
Committee :                    …..…………..…………………………………….. 
      Councillor Susan McNicholas 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated :       ……………………………………………………………………….. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



 6 

APPENDIX 1 
 
Common areas of service delivery by PCC and BBNPA: 
 
Planning – Development control; 
                  Planning policy; 
                  Supplementary planning guidance; 
                  Built Heritage and conservation; 
                  Local Development Plans 
 
Rights of way; 
Countryside management; 
Community regeneration, liaison and development; 
Community transport; 
Affordable housing; 
Tourism; 
Wales Spatial Plan. 
Sustainable Development 
Unclassified Roads (UCRs)   
LSB and the SDP 
 
 
Common areas of interest for the NP: 
 
Education (promoting understanding of the National Park;  more detailed 
learning opportunities for University and schools) 
Community strategy engagement; 
Mid Wales Partnership strategies (Transport and Tourism); 
Building control (issuing of Completion Notices); 
Corporate management with PCC; 
Research and Information; 
Geographic Information Systems; 
Collaboration with voluntary and community sector organisations. 
MoD proposals and developments. 
Highway matters 
 
 
Common areas of interest for PCC: 
 
National Park Management Plan; 
Brecon Town Centre development; 
Hay on Wye, Talgarth, and Crickhowell Centre developments; 
Village developments; 
MoD proposals and developments. 
 
 
 
 
 

Revised May 2011 

Page 14



Document is Restricted

Page 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Decisions taken by the Executive Leader
 
Decisions Taken 2 June 2011  

WLGA Welsh Leadership Academy
 

DECISION Reason for Decision
 That County Councillors L.G. Davies 
and Miss S.J. Millington be nominated 
for the WLGA Welsh Leadership 
Academy.

 As part of the ongoing programme of 
Member development.

  

 

Page 37

2



This page is intentionally left blank



 
The WLGA welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English - Mae WLGA yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg 

Printed on recycled paper - Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur eildro 

 

Date/Dyddiad:   May 2011 
Please ask for/Gofynnwch am: Daniel Hurford 
Direct line/Llinell uniongyrchol: 029 2046 8615 
Email/Ebost:    daniel.hurford@wlga.gov.uk 

 
To Chief Executives and Leaders 
cc Members Services Officers 
County and County Borough Councils 
 
 

Welsh Leadership Academy 
July - October 2011 
 
Following positive feedback from authorities, the WLGA is again 
working with the LGID (formerly the IDeA) to deliver the Welsh 
Leadership Academy for elected members.  
 
As usual, there will be enough places for only one member from each 
authority; however we suggest that you submit a maximum of two 
potential participants as more spaces may become available 
depending on how many authorities participate. Every year members 
report that this is a valuable leadership experience, testimonies from 
previous attendees include: 
  
“I think I have the potential for being a better leader. I have received 
lots of information to help me reflect on how I currently behave and 
need to put this into action”. 
 
“A very well organised course with first class inputs from experienced 
presenters. I would recommend attendance on the programme for all 
cabinet members and committee chairs” 
 

“The Academy offered me alternative solutions to problems which I 
would never have considered before, and I now have a far greater 
appreciation of leadership styles and techniques” 
 
“I’ve enjoyed meeting other councillors just to talk about the different 
ways “other people” do things and also from a social networking point 
of view.” 
  
Who is it for? 
 
Leading members, including: leaders; leaders of political groups; 
executive members; portfolio holders; opposition spokespeople, and 
scrutiny chairs (although please note that the WLGA also provides a 
separate Scrutiny Member Development Programme).Many authorities 
also view it as an opportunity to promote succession planning and the 
development of future lead members. Programmes are cross-party 
and restricted to 24 members at any one session, to ensure maximum 
participation.  
 
How long does it take? 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Steve Thomas CBE 
Chief Executive 
Prif Weithredwr 
 
Welsh Local 
Government 
Association 
Local Government 
House 
Drake Walk 
CARDIFF CF10 4LG 
Tel: 029 2046 8600 
Fax: 029 2046 8601 Page 39



 
The WLGA welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English - Mae WLGA yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg 

Printed on recycled paper - Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur eildro 

 

 
Three modules of two days each during a period of three months. The dates are  
 
Module 1: 5 to 6 July 2011 
Module 2: 6 to 7 September 2011 
Module 3: 11 to 12 October 2011 
 
Where will it happen? 
 
The Parkway Hotel, Cwmbran 
 
What does it aim to do? 
 
Develop participants' leadership style, give them confidence and create a support network 
among peers in other councils and parties. 
 
What does it cover? 
 
Module one: focuses on personal leadership, and is provided by AHA Consultancy Limited. 
The aim of this module is to encourage councillors to look at what kind of leader they are, 
and how this affects the way they make decisions, delegate responsibility and empower 
their colleagues. 
 
Module two: looks at political leadership and is provided by Warwick Business 
School. Their experts deliver a participative programme that explores the theoretical and 
practical aspects of strategic leadership.  
 
Module three: explores community leadership and cohesion, and how councillors can 
make the most of their relationships with community leaders to make sure the community 
is properly involved in council plans. It is provided by Warwick Business School.  
 
How much does it cost? 
 
The Leadership Academy has been further subsidized this year and the total cost to 
authorities will be £500 for the first delegate and £625 for any additional delegate. The 
WLGA will be providing match-funding of the same amount. 
 
Other Leadership Academies 
 
The WLGA will also offer 50% subsidy to members wishing to attend other LGID (IDeA) 
Leadership Academies should the date for the Welsh Academy be inconvenient (it should be 
noted however that IDeA Leadership Academies do not take account of the Welsh policy 
context). Dates and further details are available at www.idea.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



 
The WLGA welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English - Mae WLGA yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg 

Printed on recycled paper - Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur eildro 

 

 
How do you book? 
 
Please make bookings via your member support officers by 3rd June. We intend to offer 1 
place per authority, however, any surplus places will be offered on a first come first served 
basis. Member support officers should send details of the nominated members (name, 
position, email, contact address and phone number) to jenna.redfern@wlga.gov.uk. The 
LGID (IDeA) will then send application forms and joining instructions direct to members. 
 
 
Yours faithfully, 

 
 
 
 

Daniel Hurford 
Head of Policy (Improvement and Governance) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Portfolio Holder Decisions 

Councillor E.M. Jones
Leader 

Councillor L.G. Davies
Portfolio Holder for Children and Partnerships 

Councillor S.M. Hayes
Portfolio Holder for Learning and Leisure

Councillor K.M. Roberts-Jones
Portfolio Holder for Portfolio Holder for Corporate Governance and 
Assets

Councillor A.G. Thomas
Portfolio Holder for Resources, Workforce and Housing 

Decision Taken 17 November 2011   

21st Century Schools Capital Bid Submission

DECISION Reason for Decision 
To approve submission of the 21st 
Century Schools Capital Bids as 
attached.

To ensure that the authority 
submits its bid for 21st Century 
Schools funding within the 
deadline set by the Welsh 
Government

Page 43

3



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

                                                                                                                                                                                
      

      
 

 
 

Programme of Projects  

Submission Template - Form Band A 

Local Authority: Powys  

 

Section 1:  Strategy & Investment Aims 

Box 1 . If applicable, please explain the extent of the changes to the Band A 
programme outlined in your SOP due to the prioritisation criteria (Section 7.2 of the 
Guidance Note) and the application of the 50% intervention rate. Any de-scoping 
and/or omission of project(s) should be provided in this section. 

 

Powys’ initial 21st Century Schools submission made in December 2010 outlined 
the investment programme that the authority had planned for the 12 years 
commencing in April 2012. The majority of that planned investment in the 
original band A projects (2012/13 to 2014/15) was d irectly linked to either the 
Bro Dyfi geographical pathfinder project, which has  previously seen the 
construction of award winning “Canolfan Hyddgen” us ing the Passivhaus 
construction methodology, or to the primary catchme nt area reviews in the 
Gwernyfed, John Beddoes, Welsh Medium Severn Valley  and the Llanidloes / 
Machynlleth catchment areas.   

The authority’s original submission of £323m for the period up to 2023 had been 
based on an authority’s contribution of 30% (£97m) to the schemes. 

The authority has successfully undertaken a review of Primary provision in the 
Maesydderwen catchment area, and will open 4 new schools in the catchment 
during the 2012-13 school year. This area review approach is very time intensive, 
but does ensure inclusivity in the decision making process. This wider community 
involvement in the decision making process was reflected with the authority only 
receiving 15 objections to the statutory proposals to close the existing 10 schools 
and reflects the buy in achieved with the community.  

The decision to delay the start of the 21st Century Capital programme, due to 
financial constraints, until 2014 and the introduction of the authority’s requirement 
to fund 50% of the programme has resulted in the following proposed programme 

Page 45



 2 

changes:- 

1. The authority has removed £2m per annum in respect of major repairs from 
the bid as this type of investment no longer meets the Welsh Government’s 
investment criteria.  

2. The authority has removed its separate bid of £5m in respect of ICT 
infrastructure. Some of the expectations of the original bid will have been 
met through separate investments made by the authority and through the 
Public Sector Broadband Aggregate (PSBA) investment programme by the 
revised start date for the 21st century programme.  Any other investment 
required in respect to ICT has been incorporated into the individual projects 
being submitted. 

3. The authority commenced a Primary area review in the Gwernyfed High 
School Catchment Area during 2010, with an expectation that the review 
would have been completed in time for the start of the investment 
programme in 2012. The authority has undertaken a series of informal 
consultation meetings with staff, governors and the communities in the area 
during the spring/summer 2010 and is planning to commence statutory 
consultation procedures during 2011. It is proposed to reduce from the 
current 10 primary schools to 5 schools, with a plan to remodel 3 of the 
existing schools and provide 2 new schools.     

Due to the delay in the start of the 21st Century programme the authority has 
identified £ 5.82 m from its own resources to commence 2 of the capital 
schemes needed in this catchment area. The remaining investment to 
complete the catchment is included in the revised submission. 

4.  The review undertaken around the Welsh Medium in the Severn Valley has 
identified the need to increase the capacity for Welsh Medium Primary 
Education by the replacement of the current Ysgol Dafydd Llywd with a new 
Welsh Medium Primary School for up to 300 learners.   

     A work stream has been established to identify the full requirements of the 
school and to identify a suitable site. The authority has again recognised the 
urgency of this project and has identified £7.54m to fund 80% of the 
scheme, the remaining £1.89m (20%) required is included in the 
submission. 

     The council will be committing a substantial part of its reserves to 
commence the work on the Gwernyfed catchment and the Severn Valley 
Welsh Medium schemes prior to the 21st Century Schools funding becoming 
available. 

5.  A review of the projects that were included in the original Band B and C 
schemes has been undertaken to consider if any of the schemes should be 
brought forward based on the condition of the buildings.  One scheme 
“South Powys Secondary Improvement Programme Phase 1” within the 

Page 46



 3 

original Band B (2015/16 to 2017/18) is a programme to replace the current 
high school in Brecon with a new integrated learning campus, incorporating 
all post 11 education for the catchment, including Further Education and 
establishing Brecon as the main centre for the delivery of post 16 education 
for the south of the county.  As with the current scheme in Ystradgynlais this 
and the other projects will be developed on the principles of extending the 
wider community use of the facilities and the incorporated leisure services 
will be dual use to maximise the schools and community usage. 

The school was the only secondary school in the county to be assessed as 
a Category “D” in terms of condition.  In reality the inclusion of this scheme 
in the resubmission is not bringing it forward as the original investment was 
planned to commence in 2015 and it is now projected that this scheme 
should commence in the second half of the 6 year programme. The bid 
included is based on the replacement cost of the school together with the 
elements of the leisure facilities that would be required to deliver the primary 
and secondary education curricula.  The authority has already commenced 
discussions with Coleg Powys on the proposed integrated learning project. 
The improvement of the facilities in Brecon has been identified as the 
priority in the college’s asset management plan.   

 

Section 2: Detail of Programme  

Box 2. Please provide a breakdown and further detai l on the project(s) in the 
first band programme. 

The projects that are included in the first band programme for the 21st Century 
Schools capital invest are:- 

   Review           Council Investment            2 1st Century Schools       Priority 

   Area                 2012-13 & 21013-14           Capital Programme  

                                                                        2014 - 15 to 2019 - 20 

 Gwernyfed Primary         £  5.82 m                        £ 15.13    m                     1 

  New Welsh Primary       £  7.54 m                       £    1.89     m                    1 

  John Beddoes Primary  £  Nil                              £    2.42     m                    1  

  Llanidloes/Machynlleth  £  Nil                              £    6.20     m                    1 

  Primary            

  Beacons Sec. (Brecon) £  Nil                               £  33.00    m                     1 

  Machynlleth-Pathfinder  £ Nil                               £   19.54   m                     2  

  Total                              £  13.36 m                    £    78.18  m  

Page 47



 4 

In terms of investment timing, as the authority has completed or is in the process 
of completing the 4 primary area review programmes and to ensure the revenue 
efficiencies are achieved, all four identified investments are required by the end of 
the first half of the investment programme (2016-17).  

The authority has already commissioned and received feasibility studies on each 
of the 2 secondary school schemes, albeit for more extensive schemes than now 
proposed. It is proposed that funding for design etc. would be required in the first 
three years of the programme timescale with the major capital investment being 
required during the second half (2016/17 to 2019/20) of the programme.  

Based on the above figures if the full programme was delivered the split of the 
Capital costs would be £ 52.45m from the Council and partner resources and 
£39.09m in grant from the Welsh Government. 

Priority 1 Projects 

Gwernyfed Primary School Review. 

The authority commenced a review of the primary school provision in the 
Gwernyfed High School catchment during the 2009-10 school year and is  
planning for the statutory consultation meetings to take place before the end of the 
current school year.  

The catchment currently consists of 10 Primary Schools (5 Community, 3 Church 
Controlled & 2 Church Aided) with pupil numbers ranging from 20 to 150. The area 
review has been undertaken by an “Area Project Board” (APB) which has 
consisted of representatives from each school, council service areas, health, 
church bodies, third sector (PAVO) and local councillors. The catchment is very 
rural in nature with the main centres of population being centred on the small 
market towns of Hay-on-Wye and Talgarth.  The review has been undertaken 
through the main board being supported by work streams focussing on :- 

- SEN/ALN requirements 

- Community Focussed Requirements 

- Church Schooling requirements 

- Welsh Education 

The proposal in Gwernyfed is to build two new schools in Hay on Wye (240 pupil) 
and Talgarth (150 pupil) and to remodel the three schools in Clyro, Llangorse and 
Llyswen (Archdeacon Griffiths).  The two new schools, in addition to general class 
rooms will also have additional SEN/ALN facilities. All 5 schools would offer pre 
school education for 2 and 3 year olds with full day care being provided where 
required.   

The proposed school configuration would leave the catchment with 2 community, 2 
church controlled and 1 church aided schools. The diocesan authorities and their 

Page 48



 5 

school representatives have played an integral role in developing the proposals.  

The full implementation of the proposals for the catchment is expected to make 
revenue saving of between £335,000 and £385,000 per annum.  

This area review is the second such area review the authority has undertaken. To 
ensure the proposals of the APB are implemented the authority’s cabinet has 
identified £5.82 m of capital budget for the 2012-13 and 2013-14 to ensure the 
proposals are implemented as quickly as possible to achieve the educational and 
financial benefits for the children currently in the schools. 

Severn Valley Welsh Medium (Replacement school for Ysgol Dafydd Llwyd) 

The authority’s original Welsh Education Scheme (WES) and the developing 
Welsh Education Strategic Plan (WESP) has/will have a priority of developing 
additional capacity to meet the increasing demand for Welsh Medium Education in 
the catchment area of Newtown. Currently Welsh medium primary school provision 
in Newtown is delivered through Ysgol Dafydd Llwyd, which currently shares a site 
with Ladywell Green N & I school and Hafren Junior Schools.  

The school’s physical facilities are poor, of the four blocks comprising the school, 2 
have been assessed as category “D”, one as “C” and the remaining block as “B”, 
with 83% of the accommodation being assessed as C or D.  In addition to the poor 
condition of the building the school is operating with restricted facilities and in 
particular does not have direct access to a school hall, and has to access this type 
of facility in Hafren CP.  

The pupil numbers in the school have grown over the years, but has shown a rapid 
increase over the last 3 years with the early years and infant pupils estimated to 
represent approximately 60% of the total 180 pupils in the school by the end of the 
current school year. This growth is projected to continue as the numbers in the 
linked Clych Meithrin are also very strong and it is projected that the school will 
grow to between 230 and 270 pupils over the next 5 years.  

The authority has undertaken a review of Welsh Medium for the whole Severn 
Valley (Llanidloes to Welshpool) over the last 18 months. The membership of this 
APB contained similar representation to that of the APB in Gwernyfed. This review 
confirmed that the priority was to address the shortfall of Welsh Medium Primary 
places in Newtown.  

A small project team was established at the start of this school year to identify a 
suitable site for the new school and is expected to report back to council in the 
spring of 2012. 

As with the Gwernyfed review there is an urgency to deliver this project and the 
cabinet of the authority has identified £7.54m of Capital for the 2012-13 and 2013-
14 financial years towards this project, with the remaining projected costs being 
included in the submission. 

The implementation of this project will not release any revenue savings but will 

Page 49



 6 

significantly improve the quality of facilities for the pupils and meet the increasing 
demand for Welsh Medium primary Education in the area. 

John Beddoes Primary Review 

The area review, which has been established on the same basis as the previous 
reviews, commenced during 2010. There are currently six primary schools in the 
catchment, 3 Church controlled, 2 community and one charity voluntary aided 
school.  As with the Gwernyfed catchment, the area is very rural with two main 
centres of population in Knighton and Presteigne. The area is situated in the east 
of the county and borders both Shropshire and Herefordshire in England.  

The authority is planning for the APB to approve the commencement of informal 
consultation meetings at its next meeting in December. It is expected that the 
consultation will be on the proposal to reduce to 3 schools, with the schools being 
located in Knghton, Presteigne and New Radnor, with 1 community school, 1 
church controlled and the third school being either a church controlled or 
community school.  

The John Beddoes primary review was included as part of Band A and part of 
Band B in the initial 21st Century Schools bid and therefore only one school 
remodelling has been included in this resubmission.  

As with the work undertaken by the Gwernyfed APB, officers from the Brecon and 
Swansea Diocese have been integral to the discussion undertaken in this 
catchment.  

The reduction in the number of schools in the catchment, even after accounting for 
the additional transport costs is projected to make annual revenue saving of 
between £215,000 and £245,000. 

Llanidloes / Machynlleth Primary Area Review 

This is the last primary area review that the authority launched and began during 
the 2010-11 school year. Unlike the other catchment reviews which are around a 
single high school catchment, this review has looked at two small catchments in 
the north west of the county. As with the other reviews the catchment is very rural 
with centres of population around the small market towns of Llanidloes and 
Machynlleth and large villages (for Powys) of Caersws and Trefeglwys. Each 
catchment currently has 4 primary schools, all of which are community schools 
with numbers ranging from 35 to 300. The catchments are comprised of 3 Welsh 
Medium, 2 Dual Stream and 3 English Medium schools. 

Of the 8 schools, 2 are relatively new, 1 has been remodelled in the last 15 years, 
1 was partly remodelled under the infant class size capital grant, with the 
remaining 4 schools having no major works undertaken in them in the last 20 
years.   

Governing bodies in both catchments and in both the primary and secondary 
sectors have expressed an interest in the establishment of an through school in 

Page 50



 7 

the respective areas and a significant piece of work around this has commenced 
with the area project board.  

In Llanidloes, the primary and secondary schools are co-located and part of the 
submission for this catchment is to remodel part of the Primary school and some of 
the common facilities used by both schools.   

In Machynlleth the primary school is less than 20 years old, but the secondary 
building is in a very poor condition (Category C) and is subject to a separate bid 
later in this section of the submission.  

It is envisaged that the authority will be proposing the closure of three schools 
across these two catchments with net annual revenue saving of between £180,000 
and £210,000. In addition to the work outlined above it is planned to remodel the 
other remaining school in the Machynlleth Catchment. 

Beacons Community Campus School (Brecon) 

Powys County Council, following discussions with its partner providers have 
recently developed proposals to transform secondary and post-16 education in the 
county.  These proposals address the pressures facing all learning providers 
through budgetary constraints, demographics, the legislative requirement to 
increase choices for 14 – 19 year olds and the need to provide a broad range of 
skills-based provision to meet the needs of the local and national economy. 
 
As stated above the condition of buildings at Brecon High School are very poor – 
Condition D – and are in need of significant investment.  Coleg Powys’ buildings 
are of a variable quality.  The College’s long-standing estates strategy has 
identified Brecon as a key location for a skills centre in South Powys.  The current 
combined range of facilities in Brecon falls considerably short of what the Authority 
and the College feel are necessary to meet the needs of learners in the 21st 
Century.  
   
The proposal for the development of an integrated Learning Campus in Brecon 
has resulted from the identification of the need for significant investment, by Powys 
County Council and Coleg Powys, in the buildings and facilities of Brecon High 
School and the College’s Brecon campus. The Council sees the development of 
an integrated Learning Campus as providing a hub for learning in South Powys, 
enabling the growth of cost-effective courses, and providing more learning 
opportunities and seamless pathways for learners.  
 
The concept has been developed with a clear focus on putting the learner at the 
heart of the learning campus. The proposed location of the teaching and learning 
spaces, social areas, administration, management and specialist resources have 
all been considered from the point of view of the learner; their experience of 
learning, maximising the benefit that they get from their time learning and making 
their whole learning experience as engaging and as varied as possible. 
 
There are excellent potential links between Brecon High School, the College and 
the leisure centre which will allow collaboration on joint learning projects as well as 
allowing students from both the school and the college to access a variety of 
general and specialist learning spaces as appropriate. This will enable learners to 
have greater access to a wider range of subject choice, more recognition of their 

Page 51



 8 

non formal and informal learning and facilitate improved access to support services 
as well as providing greater collaboration between partners in the development of 
individual learner pathways at 14 and 16+. This provision will fully support Powys 
in its mission to create a modern, efficient, effective and sustainable secondary 
and post-16 Learning Network which provides all learners with a coherent and 
wide range of relevant, contemporary, high quality and accessible provision.  
 

Ysgol Bro Dyfi (Machynlleth) 

The aim of this proposal is to develop a new-build Community Campus on the site 
of Ysgol Bro Ddyfi, replacing the current ageing building.  The new campus will 
enable the manifestation of the Council’s ambition for efficient and high-quality 
education provision whilst providing citizen-centred services to a rural and isolated 
community.  Efficiencies will be realised by bringing together a secondary school, 
post-16 provision and adult learning services on one campus.   The Authority has 
been working within a challenging budgetary situation for the last few years and is 
required to look at ways of making efficiency savings and of providing services in a 
more efficient and effective manner.   
 
This is one of the priority projects for the Authority and has been in development 
since the Geographic Pathfinder initiative in 2005/06.  The first phase of the project 
was completed in 2009, with the opening of Canolfan Hyddgen, a multi-agency 
post-16 training centre.  The project encapsulates the Authority’s vision for 
providing Services for the Green Heart of Wales – it addresses three of the four 
main improvement priorities – learning in the community, economic regeneration 
and climate change, and can also make a positive contribution to improving adult 
living.   
 
The integration of these facilities provides a cost-effective way of retaining key 
services in a rural area.  This is particularly important for the Authority as it faces a 
very challenging economic outlook.  The Dyfi Valley Community Campus will be 
the second major reconfiguration in Powys under the auspices of the Secondary 
and Post 16 Modernisation Programme and provides a solution to the issues 
facing the county’s education provision.   
 
Linked to this development is the recommendation to develop an All Through 
School for 3 – 19 year olds in the Dyfi Valley. The concept of integrating education 
for 3-19 year olds is seen as an efficient solution to safeguarding educational 
provision, especially in rural areas.  The educational benefits of this model for all 
learners aged 3 – 19 are significant and will take forward the aims of Welsh 
Government to improve standards of education for all learners.  It is not anticipated 
at this stage that the new campus will replace the existing primary school in 
Machynllleth, as this is a 15 year old building in good condition.  However, the 
campus will be designed to ensure that there is flexibility to deliver a significant 
amount of cross-phase education for primary aged pupils.  
 

(Word limit 2,000 words) 

 

Section 3 - Resource Inefficiencies 

Page 52



 9 

i. Condition 

Please detail the number of schools that are currently in each condition category 
that will be affected by the Band A programme/project(s) and the condition 
category of each school after the investment programme of Band A is complete. 

Table 1  

Condition 
Category 

Condition of  
Primary in 
Programme 

(Pre-Investment) 

Condition of  
Primary in 
Programme 

(Post-
Investment) 

 

Condition of  
Secondary in 
Programme 

(Pre-Investment) 

Condition of  
Secondary 
Programme 

(Post-
Investment) 

A 0 8  2 

B 18 6   

C 7 0 1  

D 0 0 1  

Total  25 14 2 2 

 

Box 3  - If appropriate, please provide a rationale to expl ain why those school 
buildings identified as Condition Category D in you r survey are not included 
within the first band of investment. 
 
 
Powys only has 2 Schools (Excluding those in the Ystradgynlais Area) which were 
given an overall assessment of “D”, the first is Brecon High School at which the 2 
main school blocks were also given an individual assessment of “D”.  
 
The other School is Ladywell Green N & I School in Newtown, which is one of the 
schools that is co-located on the same site as Ysgol Dafydd Llwyd, which is 
planned to be replaced with a new Welsh Medium School for the Severn Valley.  
Although given an overall assessment of D each of the blocks at the school was 
given a C assessment. 
 
As stated above the authority is undertaking its Primary reviews, catchment area 
by catchment area and the review for Newtown has been planned to commence 
after the next Council elections. The development of the new Welsh Medium 
School in the town will include the option of transferring provision from some of the 
Condition Category C buildings at Ladywell into the Condition Category B 
elements of Ysgol Dafydd Llwyd once the new school has been built. 
 
Of the 9 blocks in the School estate that were assessed as Category D, 4 of them 
have been included in the bids for Brecon High School and Ysgol Dafydd Llwyd, 
with the remainder being small demountable areas in schools with a level of 
surplus capacity and the Authority has already instigated a plan to remove these 

Page 53



 10 

areas from the school estate. 
 
(Word Limit – 1,000) 
 

 

ii. School Capacity 

Box 4.  If applicable please provide an overview of your l ocal authority’s 
strategy to reduce surplus capacity (particularly s urplus places) for the 
whole  school estate (not just Band A) over the next 12 y ears. This section 
should outline the key mechanisms to achieve this ( i.e. both capital and non-
capital interventions)  

Please also advise on any target established by the  local authority (for 
example < 10%). If the target is greater than 10% p lease also advise why this 
is the case. 

 

The latest submission to the Welsh Government (June 11) based on the January 
2011 PLASC data showed that Powys had 2,876 (23.8%) surplus places in the 
Primary Sector and 1,944 (18.25%) surplus places in the Secondary Sector. The 
data submitted also provided pupil number forecasts for the period up to and 
including 2016. This data showed a projected increase in Primary numbers of 250 
pupils over the period, but a drop of 940 Pupils in the Secondary schools over the 
same period. The net reduction of 690 pupils across the two sectors will increase 
the total surplus places to 5,510 (24.3%) based on the current school building 
stock.  

The authority has set itself a very challenging target of reducing the overall level of 
surplus places to less than 10% which will require a reduction of 3,250 places. This 
reduction, if translated into floor area, will require the removal of between 10,000 
and 20,000 square metres of floor space. The authority’s fair funding formula 
provides an average of £39 per square metre in relation to property costs. The 
above reduction in area would release between £390,000 and £780,000 of annual 
revenue savings for reinvestment back into the schools budgets. The actual 
expenditure on property costs in 2010-11 was at a similar level to the delegated 
figure.  

The authority is planning to address the overprovision of places through seven 
main work streams:- 

1. The review of Mobile Classrooms.  A recent report has identified that the 
authority has 93 mobile / temporary blocks on 78 individual sites. Of these 
48 schools have surplus places in excess of 30 places. A review of the use 
of all mobile classroom areas is to be undertaken between January 2012 
and December 2013, with the expected removal of a significant percentage 
of this stock. It is expected that this work stream will reduce the number of 

Page 54



 11 

places by a minimum of 500 places. This will release between £60,000 and 
£120,000 of annual revenue savings. 

2. Review of Building Blocks Assessed as Category C  & D. Of the 362 
school blocks that were assessed during 2009 and 2010, 144 (39.8%) were 
assessed to be in poor or very poor condition  (C & D), A review of the use 
of these blocks will commence in the 2012/13 school year and will consider 
if these blocks can be declared surplus and removed from the school’s use. 
This work stream is in its infancy, but it is anticipated that a minimum 
reduction of 750 places will be achieved through this work stream. This will 
release between £90,000 and £180,000 of annual revenue savings.   

3. Primary Area Reviews and Small Schools Programme  (Phase 1). The 
authority has already closed 8 small schools in the last decade and is 
currently undertaking statutory proposals on a further 4 schools. In addition 
to the small schools closures the planned reconfiguration of the primary 
school estate in the Maesydderwen, Gwernyfed, John Beddoes, Llanidloes 
and Machynlleth catchment areas will reduce the primary sector by a further 
17 schools. The authority has already seen a revenue reduction of 
£600,000 from the closure of the eight small schools and is expected to 
realise estimated further reduction of £1,500,000 from the planned net 
reduction of 21 schools. Much of this work will result in the removal of the 
very small classes (under 15) in the small schools and the majority of the 
projected saving (80 – 90%) is released through increased efficiency of 
staffing resources in the schools, with the remaining saving coming from the 
removal of the estimated 750 places from this programme.  

4. Primary Area Reviews and Small Schools Programme  (Phase 2). The 
other Primary Catchment reviews will commence during the 2012/13 school 
year and are expected to run into the next decade. These reviews across 
the remaining eight catchment areas are expected to reduce the number of 
schools by approximately 10 schools, with a reduction in places of 750 
places with estimated annual revenue saving of £650,000. 

5. Secondary Programme. (Phase 1) The two secondary Schools included in 
this bid (Brecon and Bro Dyfi) have a projected surplus of 420 places 
between the 2 schools by 2016. The planned replacement work of the 2 
schools will reduce this level by a minimum of 250 places, releasing annual 
revenue saving of between £30,000 and £60,000 per annum. The current 
remodelling and replacement of Maesydderwen High School through 
tranche 2 funding will remove 200 places from the school, with annual 
revenue saving of between £24,000 and £48,000 per annum.  

6. Secondary Programme. (Phase 2) Future reviews in bands B to D of the 
programme are projected to remove an average of 75 places per school, 
with 10 schools to be included in those reviews. This is projected to release 
750 places, with annual revenue saving of £90,000 to £180,000 per annum. 

7. Co-location of services on School Sites. The new schools being 
Page 55



 12 

developed in the Maesydderwen Catchment and the recently opened school 
at Trefonnen, Llandrindod Wells have / are being constructed as 
Community Focussed Schools and will deliver Education, Social Services 
and Health Services from the sites. This principle will be encouraged across 
the school estate, where there are available surplus places and available 
buildings in suitable condition. It is expected that this review will reduce the 
number of available places by approximately 500 places and release annual 
revenue saving of £60,000 to £120,000 per annum to the schools estate.  

The projected reduction in places and annual revenue savings of the six above 
work streams, together with the projected saving per surplus place removed is 
summarised in the following table. The table also includes an adjustment to reflect 
a percentage of double counting in the above figures. 

 Work Stream                        Estimated reduct ion       Estimated Annual       Estimated Annual  

                                              In Places                          Revenue Savings        Saving per Place 

 

1. Mobile Classroom review           500                                  £ 60 - £ 120 k              £ 120  -  £ 240 

2. Review of Blocks C & D             750                                  £ 90 -  £ 180 k             £ 120  -  £ 240 

3. Primary Reviews (Phase 1)        750                                   £1,500 k                      £ 2,000 

4. Primary Reviews (Phase 2)        750                                   £   650 k                      £    867  

5. Secondary 21st Cent.(Phase 1)   450                                 £ 54 - £ 108 k               £ 120 - £ 240 

6. Secondary 21st Cent. (Phase 2)  750                                 £ 90 - £ 180 k               £ 120 - £ 240 

7. Co-location of Services               500                                  £ 60 - £ 120 k               £ 120 - £ 240 

Total                                             4 ,450                              £2,504 - £ 2,858 k          £ 562  - £ 642       

Less reduction re Double Count.   (750)                              £(90) - £ (180)k               £(120) - £(240) 

Net Total                                      3,70 0                               £2,414 - £2,678 k           £ 652 - £ 723 

 

The above figures show that when implemented in full the authority will reduce its 
level of surplus places to below the 10% target. The figures also show that 
although there are some savings from property related funding elements from a 
removal of surplus buildings from a school site, the major savings are achieved by 
the transformational changes made through the reconfiguration of the schools 
structure within the Primary Sector.  The savings will be used, in part, to fund 
prudential borrowing to match the 21st century schools funding.  

Further projected savings are also available from the transformational proposals 
linked to the authority’s recent announcement around the Secondary School 
reconfiguration; the estimated savings are detailed in Box 6 below. 

 (Word Limit 1,000) 

Page 56



 13 

 

Table 2 i:  Please provide an indicative timeline of estimated  reductions over 
the next 12 years after each band of investment. 

Bands Percentage of Surplus 
Places (Before) 

 

Percentage of Surplus 
Places (After) 

 

A 24.3% 14.9% 

B 14.9% 12.6% 

C 12.6% 10.3% 

D 10.3% 8.0% 

 

Table 2 ii. Please detail the Measuring Capacity of  School in Wales (MCSW) 
as detailed in Circular 09/2006 and how they will c hange as a result of the 
implementation of all four investment bands.    

 January 
2011 

After 
Band A 

After 
Band B 

After 
Band C 

After 
Band D 

Total 
Reduction  

Total 
Number of 
School 
places (All 
available 
MCSW 
school 
capacity as 
per POSP 
return) 

 

 

22,692 

 

 

20,567 

 

 

 

20,042 

 

 

19,517 

 

 

18,992 

 

Reduction 
of 3,700 
places 
from 
22,692 to 
18,992 

 

Percentage 
Reduction 

(Cumulative)  

% 9.36% 

(9.36)% 

2.55% 

(11.67)% 

2.61% 

(13.99)% 

2.68% 

(16.31)% 

16.31% 

 

Box 5.  Please detail what impact the capital investment i n Band A 
Programme/Project will have on helping your local a uthority’s schools’ 
reorganisation plan and reducing surplus places. Pl ease also include the 
number of school closures in both primary and secon dary schools. 

 

The narrative included under box 4 above details the seven work streams that will 

Page 57



 14 

be used as the key elements of the implementation of the schools reorganisation, 
school place planning and asset management plans.  

The authority is using two strategic approaches in respect to the reorganisation of 
primary schools. The main approach is to undertake a review on a catchment by 
catchment basis with a multi agency membership area project board being the 
main consultative body. The APB is tasked with developing the structure of 
schools that is required for that individual area taking account of the particular local 
factors.  The second approach is to undertake an individual review on those 
schools with very low numbers and which are not involved in an area review.  

This approach has been very successful in the Ystradgynlais area and is expected 
to have similar results in the 4 other catchment areas currently subject to a review.  

The authority currently has one of the highest levels of surplus places in 
percentage terms across Wales, with each surplus place costing the authority 
£120 – £240 per annum in terms of unused physical space. The figures shown in 
Box 4 clearly shows that the main cost saving available is achievable through the 
transformational reconfiguration of the schools structure in a catchment area, and 
is achieved through the reduction of the number of classes in the Primary Sector 
with fewer that 20 pupils in them, with the resulting reduction in staff.  The primary 
area reviews are expected to reduce the number of available places by 
approximately 1,500 places with an annual revenue reduction of £2.15m which is 
an average annual saving of £1,433 per place removed.  

The proposals contained in this paper do not include the closure of any Secondary 
Schools, but does include the expected closure of a further 25 Primary Schools in 
addition to the 14 schools either closed or schedules for closure in the last decade. 
The breakdown of these expected closures are :- 

             Maesydderwen Area Review                  6 schools 

             Gwernyfed Area Review                         5 schools 

             John Beddoes Area Review                   3 schools 

             Llanidloes/Machynlleth Area Review      3 schools  

             Small School Review (Phase 1)             4 schools 

             Primary Reviews Bands B – D             10 schools  

In addition to the above programme that will see the closure of 36% of the primary 
school estate over a 20 year period, the authority has recently consulted on a 
major review of the Secondary School provision in the authority. Although this 
review will not result in a school closure it will however have a significant impact on 
the delivery made from the 13 schools. The delivery of Welsh Medium and Post 16 
education will be planned and delivered through a more efficient and effective 
structure.   

This revised structure is expected to reduce the cost of delivery in the secondary 

Page 58



 15 

sector by approximately £1,000,0000. This reduction will largely be delivered 
through the reconfiguration of the post 16 education system with the planning and 
commissioning of the provision being developed through a new planning body. The 
proposals around the delivery of Welsh Medium are not expected to deliver 
significant revenue savings, but are expected to increase the level and continuity 
of provision across the county.        

The figures shown in Tables 3 – 6 below include the planned investment from the 
authority’s own resources in 2012-13 and 2013-14 as well as the planned 
investment under Band A of the 21st Century Schools submission. Where the 
planned work is on a dual stream school, these figures have been included in 
Table 3. 

(Word Limit 500 words) 

 

Please complete the tables on the proposed project/ programme in Band A 
for the following categories. 

Table 3 – Community Schools 

No of 
Community 

Primary 
Schools 

No. of Places No. of 
Community 
Secondary 

Schools 

No. of Places Total 
Estimated 
Total Cost 

 

 

 

Reconstruction 

 

2 

 

      390 

 

2 

 

1,200 

 

£64.09 m 

No. of 
Primary 
Schools 

Estimated 
Squares 
Metres 

Estimated 
Cost 

No. of 
Secondary 
Schools 

Estimated 
Squares 
Metres 

Estimated 
Cost 

Total 
Estimated 
Total Cost  

  

 

Remodelling  2 3,100 £5.52m 0 0 0 £ 5.52m 

Brief 
Overview 
Description 
of 
remodelling 
projects 

 

Community Primary Sector:  

The 3 schools were 
assessed as Category B / C 
in terms of Condition, 
however the internal 
configuration of the 
schools does not allow the 
maximisation of the 
efficient and effective 
delivery of Education. The 
proposed remodelling will 
make all facilities Condition 
A in terms of Condition and 
Suitability. 

Community Secondary Sector: 

{narrative to explain nature of 
remodelling works} 

 

 

Page 59



 16 

Table 4 – Welsh Medium Schools 

No of 
Welsh 

Medium 
Primary 
Schools 

No. of Places No. of 
Welsh 

Medium 
Secondary 

Schools 

No. of Places Total 
Estimated 
Total Cost 

 

 

Reconstruction 

1 300 0 0 £9.42m 

No. of 
Primary 
Schools 

Estimated 
Squares 
Metres 

Estimated 
Cost 

No. of 
Secondary 
Schools 

Estimated 
Squares 
Metres 

Estimated 
Cost 

Total 
Estimated 
Total Cost  

  

 

Remodelling  1 500 m2 £3.10m 0  m2 £0 £3.10m 

Brief 
Overview 
Description 
of 
remodelling 
projects 

 

Welsh Medium Primary 
Sector:  

The school was assessed 
as Category B in terms of 
Condition , however the 
internal configuration of 
the schools does not allow 
the maximisation of the 
efficient and effective 
delivery of Education. The 
proposed remodelling will 
make all facilities 
Condition A in terms of 
Condition and Suitability. 

Welsh Medium Secondary Sector: 

 

Table 5a – Church Controlled Schools 

No. of  
Primary 
Schools 

No. of Places No. of  
Secondary 

Schools 

No. of Places Total 
Estimated 
Total Cost 

 

 

 

Reconstruction 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

£ 0 

No. of 
Primary 
Schools 

Estimated 
Squares 
Metres 

Estimated 
Cost 

No. of 
Secondary 
Schools 

Estimated 
Squares 
Metres 

Estimated 
Cost 

Total 
Estimated 
Total Cost  

  

 

Remodelling  2 1,200m2 £ 5.96m 0 0m2 £0 £6.24m 

Brief 
Overview 
Description 
of 
remodelling 
projects 

Church Controlled Schools 
Primary Sector:  

The 2 schools were 
assessed as Category B / C 
in terms of Condition, 
however the internal 

Church Controlled Secondary Sector: 

Page 60



 17 

 configuration of the schools 
does not allow the 
maximisation of the efficient 
and effective delivery of 
Education. The proposed 
remodelling will make all 
facilities Condition A in 
terms of Condition and 
Suitability. 

 

 

 

Table 5b  – Voluntary Aided (VA)/Foundation Schools 

No. of  
Primary 
Schools 

No. of Places No. of  
Secondary 

Schools 

No. of Places Total 
Estimated 
Total Cost 

 

 

 

Reconstruction 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

0 

 

£ 0 

No. of 
Primary 
Schools 

Estimated 
Squares 
Metres 

Estimated 
Cost 

No. of 
Secondary 
Schools 

Estimated 
Squares 
Metres 

Estimated 
Cost 

Total 
Estimated 
Total Cost  

  

 

Remodelling  1 720 m2 £ 3.17m 0 0m2 £0  £ 3.17m 

Brief 
Overview 
Description 
of 
remodelling 
projects 

 

VA/Foundation Schools 
Primary Sector:  

The school was assessed 
as Category B in terms of 
Condition , however the 
internal configuration of 
the schools does not allow 
the maximisation of the 
efficient and effective 
delivery of Education. The 
proposed remodelling will 
make all facilities 
Condition A in terms of 
Condition and Suitability 

VA/Foundation Secondary Sector: 

 

Table 6  

Pre-Programme (Band A) Post- Programme (Band A) Please detail the 
estimated  number 
of surplus places Total number As a percentage Total number of As a percentage 

Page 61



 18 

of surplus 
places in the 
local 
authority. 

(%) surplus places in 
the local 
authority. 

(%) 

5,510 24.3% 3,385 15.0% 

Total number 
of surplus 
places for the 
schools in the 
Programme. 

As a percentage 
(%) 

Total number of 
surplus places of 
places removed 
as a result of the 
programme.  

As a percentage 
(%) 

that will be 
removed from the 
system in relation 
to the proposed 
project 
programme in 
Band A 

1,448 30.7% 960 66% of 
Surplus 
places 
reducing % 
to 12% of 
surplus 
capacity in 
Band A 
Schools 

 

Section 4 . Resource Efficiencies 

Table 7. Please detail 
existing costs and 
estimated efficiency 
savings.  

Pre-Programme 
Investment (Band A) 

 

Post- Programme 
Investment (Band  A) 

Total Gross Internal 
Area (GIA):  

All Primary / Secondary 
Schools :            171,696 

Band A Schools : 31,185 

All Primary / Secondary 
Schools :            157,000     

Band A Schools : 26,900 

Running Costs 

(Per metre and per learner 
basis) Premises & Energy 
Costs (Including Cleaning 
etc) 

 

Per square metre: 

                      £41.75 

Per learner:  

                      £381.87 

Per square metre: 

                    £31.47 

Per learner: 

                   £287.84 

Energy Consumption 
(kwh/m2/per year) 

                            196.93                        95.43 

Co2 
co2/m2/per year 

                               95.43                         28.21 

Any other savings you 
wish to identify and 
quantify – please detail. 

                        

                None   

Green Energy Payments 
such as FITS etc of an 
estimate of £15,000 per 

Page 62



 19 

school. 

Rateable Value(s) Band A Schools :  

       £819,500 

 

Band A Schools : 

     £ 1,600,500 

 

Box 6.  As a summary to the above table please detail and quantify all cash 
releasing benefits. 

 
The summary of minimum projected annual savings available in the period 2012-13  to 2019-20 :- 
 
1. Review of Mobile Classrooms and Temporary Accommodation               £     60,000 
2. Review of Blocks assessed as Category C and D                                     £     90,000 
3. Primary School (Small Schools and Area Reviews)                                   £1,410,000      
4. Secondary Schools (Brecon and Bro Dyfi)                                                 £     54,000 
5. Co-location of Services                                                                               £     60,000 
6. Reconfiguration of Post 16 Services                                                           £1,000,000 
 
Total                                                                                                               £2,674,000 
 
Plus Additional Income re FITs etc.                                                           £    165,000 
 
Total                                                                                                               £ 2,839,000          
 
 
 
 
 

Box 7  

 No. of 
sites to be 
rationalised 
including 
projected 
capital 
receipts. 

Primary: 

Gwenyfed Catchment   5 Schools   £ 565 k Cap R 

John Beddoes Catch    3 Schools   £ 190 k Cap R 

Llanidloes Catchment   2 Schools   £ 370 k Cap R 

Machynlleth Catchment 1 School    £ 150 k Cap R 

Small Schools                4 Schools   £ 250 k Ca p R 

Total                               15 Schools £1,5 25k Cap R 

Secondary: 

 

 

None 

 

 

Section 5. Affordability 

Please can you 
confirm that the 
authority can 
contribute 50% 

Yes, 100% of Spend in 2012-13 to 2013-14 and 50% of  
planned Spend 2014-15 to 2019-20 will be funded by the 
authority via:- 

Page 63



 20 

contribution 
required to 
support the 
overall 
programme in 
Band A.  

Please identify 
and confirm 
availability of all 
sources of 
funding.  

                                                2012/13 to             2014/15 to 

                                                2013/14                 2019/20  

Supported Borrowing           £ 1.85m                £11.45m 

Prudential Borrowing           £  1.20m               £  9.60m 

Capital Receipts                    £  3.05m               £12.54m 

Council Reserves                 £  7.26m                £  0.00m 

S106/ Developer                   £  0.00m                £  5.50m 

Total                                      £ 13.36m                £ 39.09m 

 

Authorisation of Chief Executive: 

Signed 

 

Date 18th November 2011 

 

 

Page 64


	Agenda
	1 2011-05-24 Memorandum of Understanding with the BBNP Authority, and Funding of Central Wales in Collaboration Social Services Feasibiity Study and Powys Change Care Plan and Well-being Programme Support
	2011-05-24 MOU Report
	2011-05-24 MOU   BBNPA-PCC 2011
	2011-05-24 Cabinet Report - Feasibility Study CONF
	2011-05-24 Central Wales Social Services Brief and Support Options Revised

	2 2011-06-02 WLGA Welsh Leadership Academy
	2011-06-02 WLGA Leadership Academy

	3 2011-11-17 21st Century Schools Capital Bid Submission
	Powys LA 21st Century Schools Submission Band A November 2011


